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August 24, 1988

TO OUR READERS:

The Presidential Commission on the HIV Epidemic held over 45
days of hearings and site visits in preparation for our final
report to the President submitted on June 27, 1988. On behalf
of the Commission, we hope you will find the contents of this
document as helpful in your endeavors as we found it valuable
in ours. We wish to thank the hundreds of witnesses and
special friends of the Commission who helped us successfully
complete these hearings. Many people generously devoted their
volunteer time in these efforts, particularly in setting up
our site visits, and we want to fully acknowledge their work.

The staff of the Presidential Commission worked around the
clock, seven days a week to prepare and coordinate the hearings
and finally to edit the transcripts, all the while keeping up
with our demanding schedule as well as their other work. In
that regard, for this Hearing on Education and Prevention, we
would like to acknowledge the special work of Robert Mathias,
Jane West, Sherry Kaiman and Cynthia Flynn, in putting together
the hearing, and Jane West and Margo Payne, in editing the
transcript so it is readable.

For the really devoted reader, further background information
on these hearings is available in the Commission files, as well
as the briefing books given to all Commissioners before each
hearing. These can be obtained from the National Archives and
Records Administration, Washington, D.C. 20408.

One last note--We were only able to print these hearings due

to the gracious and tremendous courtesies extended by Secretary
Bowen's Executive Office, especially Dolores Klopfer and her
staff, Reginald Andrews, Sandra Eubanks and Phyllis Noble.
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PROCEEDINGS

MS. GAULT: Ladies and gentlemen, members of the
President’s Commissioner, my name is Peolly Gault. I serve as the
designated federal official, and in that capacity it is my
privilege to declare this meeting open. Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: Good morning. Yesterday we
completed our first business session on the Chairman’s
recommendations for the content of the Commission’s interim
report. In the interim report we address areas of intravenous
drug abuse, medical care for HIV in infected people, including
education of health care providers and research needs for new
drug and vaccine development. The full Commission will vote on
these recommendations after allowing 2 days for public comment.
At the close of THursday’s hearing, we will commence preparation
of the interim report from the entire Commission for delivery to
the President early next week.

Today, however, we are going to take up a new subject,
a subject that all experts agree is of critical important to
altering the course of this epidemic. That subject is prevention
and education. We have already laid the groundwork for an
education strategy by recognizing the educational needs of health
care providers in the interim report. These are the people from
which information about the HIV epidemic needs to come. They are
the horse that should be pulling the HIV education cart. We are
now ready to start filling that cart, as we address the
educational needs of such populations as the nation’s work force,
the unemployed, hard-to-reach youth, minorities and our
schoolchildren. During the course of this Commission’s work, we
have spent a majority of our time examining those aspects of the
nation’s response to the HIV epidemic that can best be
characterized as predominantly reactive. We have been looking at
what needs to be done after the fact.

Today and on the two days that follow, we are going to
look at that portion of the nation’s response to the epidemic
that is predominantly proactive. We will examine those
strategies that can be pursued before the event takes place,
strategies that can be effectively utilized to stop the spread of
the HIV infection. The reality today, as we are all too
painfully aware, is that there is no cure for AIDS. There is no
vaccine. During the next 3 days, the Commission will examine in
detail areas of prevention and education. We have spent
considerable time gathering 60 of the best minds in the nation to
present testimony on these critical areas.

We will examine the response of the nation’s public
health and education systems from the federal to the local level.
We will look for both model programs that can be successfully
replicated and for the obstacles to effective prevention and
education efforts to determine what we can do to eliminate them.




During these hearings, we will hear witnesses speak-
about laboratory support for HIV prevention services and the use
of contact notification of those who have had sexual contact with
an infected individual as a preventive measure.

The issues of testing reappear consistently as the
epidemic is examined in detail by the Commission, but it needs to
be clearly understood that this is not the only context in which
we will be addressing testing. Two weeks from now in Nashville,
Tennessee, we will be holding additional hearings on testing nd
the related issues of discrimination that so often surround those
who test positive for the virus. We could not, however, fully
examine the prevention efforts of the public health system
without including contact notification here.

Other issues that will be addressed during the next 3
days include the relationship between other forms of sexually-
transmitted disease and the human immunodeficiency virus,
appropriate strategies for reaching minority populations and
hard-to-reach youth, as well as the role that the media can play
in education of the population at large and the educational
efforts of community-based organizations those groups who have
been at the frontlines of the epidemic since the beginning. We
will, also, hear testimony from educators who will present their
views as to what type of information is appropriate to provide
for our nation’s schoolchildren and what is the best way to
deliver it. These children are tomorrow’s adults, and they
quite literally represent the future of our nation, and by
giving them the right kind of education about AIDS now, we can
help their generation avoid the tragedy we are witnessing today.

Today, we will hear testimony regarding the prevention
efforts of the nation’s public health system. I use the term
"prevention" here with its broad definition to include a variety
of strategies to stop the spread of HIV.

Tomorrow and Thursday, we will hear testimony on that
aspect of prevention, the education of our nation’s adult and
school-age population that has such great potential as a weapon
against this disease.

We have got a full agenda, and I would like to begin
now. So, I am pleased to introduce our first witness this
morning and welcome him to the Commission, Dr. C. Everett Koop,
Surgeon General of the United States.

Dr. Koop has been in the business of healing for many
years. Before joining the Federal Government in 1981, he was a
pioneering pediatric surgeon at the University of Pennsylvania in
Philadelphia. Dr. Koop has been a courageous and visible leader
in the areas of prevention and education, and I am delighted that
the Commission has this opportunity to hear his views directly.
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Thank you for being here this morning, Dr. Koop, and please
begin.

DR. KOOP: Thank you, Admiral. I welcome this
opportunity to appear before you and discuss prevention and
education issues concerning AIDS and the HIV infection. My
remarks are brief, and I will rely on your questions to bring out
those things that you would like to hear from me. First, I would
like to congratulate you and the members of the Commission for
the manner in which you are exercising your critical role in the
national effort to contain the epidemic.

Since October 1986, when I released the Surgeon
General’s Report on AIDS, this country has done much that we can
be proud of. The news media, print and electronic, have rendered
tremendous service in getting out clear information to the
public. The entertainment media have, also, put out the AIDS
message in ways that can change behavior and save lives. The
Administration and the Congress have given high priority to the
greatly increased resources for the fight against AIDS and HIV
infection. The research and the health care communities are
working hard on these problems. It is the highest level of
activity and commitment to a public health problem that I have
seen in my lifetime. There is an increasing public awareness of
this health issue, and a strong desire to take personal and
public action, but there is much more to be done and many issues
which we must enjoin if we are to contain the spread of HIV.

Let me share a few issues of special concern. I am
concerned about needle sharing among IV drug abusers. A recent
National Institute on Drug Abuse study of heroin addicts admitted
to Methadone treatment programs indicated that 93 percent had
shared needles (most in the last year) and 26 percent reported
daily needle sharing: yet only 14 percent reported the use of
condoms.

These figures have alarming implications for both IV
drug users and their sexual partners, not to mention the children
that are born of such unions. It is currently estimated that
there are about 1.1 million intravenous drug addicts in this
country. The solutions are not readily ocbvious. IV drug abusers
lead disjointed, fragmented lives, and many of them are
functionally illiterate. It is critical that we find the right -
combination of strategies to get people off drugs and away from
contaminated needles.

Additional drug treatment capacity is needed, but
simply providing more dollars does not immediately translate into
additional slots available for addicts. There needs to be
increased sharing of expertise and programmatic experience
between federal, state and local governments working in close
conjunction with community organizations and the professional
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provider community. Our only hope lies in the solutions that
come from this type of collaborative activity.

I continue to be concerned about the spread of HIV
among heterosexuals. I am outraged at recent newspaper and
magazine articles-stating that there is no danger of heterosexual
transmission from "normal vaginal intercourse." Although
homosexual sex and IV drug abuse are the principal modes by which
most cases are transmitted, it is just not true that there is no
danger from normal vaginal intercourse. What is unknown is the
level of that danger. There is always danger wherever people
engage in casual sex. To date there have been about 2100 cases
of reported heterosexual transmission out of something over
53,000 adult cases of AIDS. That is about 4 percent. If you
exclude the foreign born, the figure drops to 2.3 percent, nd
most of those cases are the sexual partners of IV dug abusers.

The Centers for Disease Control estimates that by
1991, heterosexuval transmission will account for 5 percent of the
total adult caseload; that is 5 percent of about 300,000 cases.
We know from the infected spouses of persons with hemophilia that
HIV can be spread through normal vaginal intercourse. What
concerns me is the potential for more rapid spread of HIV
infection into the general population.

This concern about a more rapid spread is reflected in
the reported increase of infectious syphilis cases by
approximately 30 percent just from 1986 to 1987. The greatest
increases were in Florida, New York and California, areas of high
HIV incidence. Relative increases were greatest for females and
heterosexual males of all racial and ethnic backgrounds.

I want to take this opportunity, sir, to add a special
word of praise for those who dedicate themselves to the
compassionate care of people with AIDS and ARC -- physicians,
nurses, teaches, social workers and others, especially in areas
with the highest concentration of AIDS cases -- specifically the
cities of New York, San Francisco and Los Angeles. However, even
there and in many other cities across this country, we are seeing
a number of instances in which health professionals refuse not
only to treat persons with AIDS but turn away patients alleged to
be identified with high-risk behavior: homosexual and bisexual
sex and intravenous drug abuse.

The decision by some health professionals to deny care
to homosexuals, IV drug abusers or others suspected of carrying
the virus is historically uncharacteristic and unworthy of anyone
in the health or social service professions. For government, for
the professions involved and for Americans generally, this kind
of behavior even by a small number of health professionals must
be a cause for grave concern.
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Of course, the reasons most often given are that AIDS
is contagious and fatal and "I don’t want to get it." But the
plain fact is that the risk of contracting HIV from an infected
patient is extremely small and virtually always preventable.

Of the nearly 7 million Americans in health
professions, we know that fewer than one dozen have become
infected with the virus while doing their jobs. And in most of
those cases, HIV exposure could have been prevented if the
persons had followed the workplace guidelines published by the
Centers for Disease Control several years ago.

I cannot overemphasize it is essential that all workers
be required by their employers to follow the CDC guidelines, and
that they be provided with protective material where necessary.

In 1988, the Federal Government will spend a total of
$1.465 billion on AIDS, including $375 million through Medicaid
on AIDS treatment, $931 million on AIDS research and education;
and an additional $159 million on treatment and prevention
efforts. THe President’s budget for Fiscal Year 1989 includes
$2.026 billion for these efforts, a 38 percent increase over
1988.

In addition, there are social costs, such as human
capital, and these are often translated as lost wages and
productivity. But even if you put to one side these indirect
social costs, we still face in the year 1991, a national bill of
3 to 5 billion dollars for the cost of AIDS-related care. Both
inpatient and outpatient, hospital and hospice. These 1991 costs
will result from the care of an estimated 145,000 persons with
AIDS who will be in various stages of a terminal illness.
Clearly, we must do a great deal more to develop alternative,
less costly, but highly effective ways to care for AIDS patients.
We need to do this in light of the specific AIDS-related diseases
and conditions we know about and the different stages through
which they progress. I believe the challenge today is to give
the country a way of caring for AIDS patients while preventing an
escalation of costs.

I would also like to make the critical point that one
of the complexities of AIDS is that it is an epidemic
characterized by related issues, a number of them social, such as
homosexuality and IV drug abuse. We must develop our strategies
to meet the specific dimension of each issue related to the
epidemic, if we are to contain HIV infection in this country.

In my remarks I have limited myself to just a few
critical issues. There are many others. They must all be
addressed if we are to interrupt the chain of transmission of HIV
and spare our people and the people of the world the pain, the
suffering and the deaths from AIDS. We need to stop it in a way
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that is effective yet consistent with American law and tradition.
We can do it by making certain that the American people have a
clear understanding of the threat posed to them by this disease
and that they are ready to fight back with the best weapon
available to them: their intelligent choices about personal
behavior.

As a Presidential Commission with high public
visibility, you have the ability to market good disease
prevention, good science and good health care practices to the
public.

The American public look to your final report for
leadership vision of those things we must do to contain the
epidemic. In this way, I believe you will have served the very
best interests of the American people. Thank you.

CHATIRMAN WATKINS: Thank you very much, Dr. Koop.
I would like to commence the questioning this morning from my
left, your right. Mr. John Creedon.

MR. CREEDON: Thank you, Dr. Koop. I guess we have
been hearing for quite some time now that what we need to do is
prevent the spread of the disease, and the main vehicle for doing
that now is education. It seems to me there has been a lot of
education over the past 6 to 9 months -- television programs,
television advertisements, newspaper articles, magazine articles,
efforts made in the schools to put curriculum in. What else
needs to be done, as you see it, specifically? What specifics
can we recommend as a Commission to improve the education of the
different groups? It seems to me there is a high level of
education about the problem in the homosexual community, less so
in the IV drug user community, a community that is much more
difficult to reach. What specifically do you see as something
that we could recommend?

DR. KOOP: Admiral Watkins mentioned some of the things
that are on my mind, in his introductory remarks. I thing the
first thing is to recognize the people you are trying to reach
and to develop the message in such a way that it reaches target
groups.

I think that messages have to be targeted to the
homosexual, to the heterosexual and to the IV drug abuser. From
an AIDS point of view, I think we have three different
challenges. The message has to be different to those who are
college age and above, and certainly different for those who are
pre-adolescent. I would like to take a moment to talk about
that. If we had proper value-laden, responsible education about
human sexuality undertaken in pre-adolescent years, which is the
primary responsibility of parents, with parent reinforcing
parent, parents being reinforced by schools, schools being
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reinforced by churches and community organizations, I think it is
quite possible to raise a generation of adolescents down the road
that would be far less sexually active than the present one.

That brings us to the teenagers of today. Many people are
discouraged about teenagers because some of them are so sexually
active. However, those who have remained abstinent and are
looking forward to monogamous relationships need to have that
decision reinforced in every place that we can. I think it is
also realistic to understand that sexually-active teenagers are
unlikely to reverse their pattern and go backward. Therefore,
the prevention for them has to be our third line of defense,
which is to teach them about the protection of themselves and
others through the use of condoms and spermicides.

Now, I know that that goes against the grain of many
people in this country, but we cannot abandon more than half of
our teenagers because they are sexually active. We have to
reach them where they are and tell them about those things that
they have to do.

My greatest concern has already been well enunciated in
Admiral Watkins’ report last week. That is, the epidemic is
spreading most in the IV drug abusers, and they are the hardest
people to reach. I have made it a point to work with IV drug
abusers in Newark and New York. I traveled to Scotland late last
year to look at the clean needle experiments in Glasgow and
Edinburgh, and we have problems that they don’t face at all. If
you talk to Edinburgh drug addicts, they are all of one culture.
They are Scottish. They live in housing developments. Many of
them are married and have children, and they are all literate.
They read, they understand, and they follow directions. You try
that in New York City where you are dealing with a fragmented
individual who has had very few choices to make in life. Those
he has made have been poor; he is now addicted to a very
difficult drug habit to kick. He cannot read and his life is so
fragmented he tends not to congregate in a place where you can
show him a video tape or talk to him.

I think one of the most effective things that can be
done with these people which is high labor intensive, is to have
former drug addicts talk with them one on one and convince them
about the problems of needle sharing. We have had some
successful experience with this in some parts of the country.

The reason for its success is because somebody who understands
their problem and kicked their drug habit is now able to tell
them what the challenge is of this epidemic. That is hard to do.
Also, some of the things that were mentioned in the preventive
efforts of Admiral Watkins’ paper last week are very difficult

to bring about in communities. Although everybody is in favor of
getting rid of drug abuse, nobody wants to be the person involved
with doing it. Money is also terribly important. But as you
know, as well as I, a lost of the money that has been already
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appropriated to the states has not been used because they cannot
find the places to put the drug abuse clinics. They cannot find
the counselors with skills to be able to talk to these pecple one
on one, and counseling is very much a part of any Methadone
treatment. Those are the problems that I see.

In closing, I would say that the one thlng that I wish
I saw here, that I saw abroad, is visible posters in those
communities most likely to reach the illiterate which speak to
them in sign language. I don’t see those here. I do see them in
Liverpool, and I see them in Edinburgh, and I see them on the
Continent.

MR. CREEDON: Thank you.
CHATRMAN WATKINS: Ms. Gebbie?

MRS. GEBBIE: One of the issues within any public
health effort in this country is the pluralism of the systen,
and that is local government, state government, the Federal
Government, each of them not necessarily working for the same
bosses but trying toc work together. That sometimes appears
complicated to people at the state and local levels when it
appears as if the various components of the federal public health
system aren’‘t pulling together or all in the same direction.
Could you comment a little bit on that process of getting the
elements of the Public Health Service coordinated and your sense
of direction and the effectiveness of the coordinating process
that is going on today?

DR. KOOP: There are two mechanisms already at work.
One is the Association of State and Territorial Health Officers,
a remarkably fine group of people who do work well together and
who work well in tandem with the Federal Government. In
addition, the Public Health Service divides the country into ten
regions. Each has a regional health administrator who is part of
a regional structure that carries on much more inclusive
activities than health. These two mechanisms already are at
work. What I think is needed, and what I have been calling for,
for over a year, from every podlum I have had the privilege of
using in this country is the need for dialogue of the most
statesmanlike variety. We need to bring federal, state and
certain municipal people together. There is no doubt that the
burden of AIDs is being borned by municipalities. They can lean
only so long upon state help, and the states have to lean
eventually on federal help. The problems that these people could
discuss, in addition to prevention, are how much it is g01ng to
cost? Who is going to pay what part of it. Where does insurance
fit in? And then, as I mentioned in my prepared statement, what
is an alternate cheaper method, but compassionate way, of deallng
with terminally ill patients?



MRS. GEBBIE: Could you carry that a little further
within the federal system? I really would appreciate some
comment on the dialogue within the various components of the
federal Public Health Service and whether you are satisfied with
the coordination that is in place there or are there some
additional things we should be recommending?

DR. KOOP: I am satisfied with it. Any bureaucracy is
cumbersome, and AIDS is getting to be such a problem its own
little bureaucracy is becoming cumberson. The Public Health
Service exists within the Department of Health and Human
Services. It is composed of five major agencies to which the
Indian Health Service has just been added. The five you are
familiar with are the Centers for Disease COntrol, National
Institutes of Health, Food and Drug Administration, ADAMHA and
finally the Health Resources and Services Administration. Each
of the components of the Public Health Service has representation
on an Executive Task Force on AIDS which meets for 2 hours on
alternate Mondays. Reports from various pre-established
committees that have to do with every phase of AIDS are
presented at these meetings. In addition to that, there is an
HHS interagency task force which meets weekly.' This task force
has representatives from all components of HHS such as the
General Counsel’s Office, HCFA, Social Security Administration
and so on.

So I think there is a good communication network in
place within the Public Health Service and within HHS and that
it is being used actively and appropriately.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: Dr. Lilly.

DR. LILLY: Dr. Koop, I think you made a brilliant
presentation on this point. I want to go just a little bit
further. Somehow or other are we in this country, as you
suggest, thinking that if we can just start now teaching our kid
to live properly that another 50 years from now there will be no
extramarital sex whatsoever; if we can just now start working on
our kids to teach them not to use drugs, 50 years from now there
will be no drug abuse of any kind? I am not sure I believe that,
at least in those extreme terms I have mentioned. I am gquite
sure that we have a problem now and that the plans for raising a
future generation are not addressing the problem now and I am
very worried about that. I have no quarrel with the future
plans. I think they are wonderful. We must do those. Those are
very high priority activities. I think that in a sense, since
the problems of trying to deal with the present drug abusers,
with the present people who still practice sex, that in a sense
we are abandoning those people. We don’t have enough courage to
do something for them, and I am wondering if you can tell us, do
you think that plans for things like eliminating needle sharing
by perhaps even going to the extremes of eliminating the laws
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against possession of injection equipment, do you think that
things like that are feasible or desirable? Do we need more
research on those issues? Do we need to research the business of
needle exchange for current IV drug abusers who cannot get into
treatment programs and who will not be able to get into treatment
programs for months down the road? Do you think that sex
education for how to behave now for people who, as you say, are
not going to go back and change their behavior, is called for?

We need research on the effectiveness of trying to give a simple
explanation of how to use a condom? Do we need research or do we
know now what to do there?

DR. KOOP: That was a lot of questions, sir. I never
meant to imply by my enthusiasm for teaching youngsters about
their own sexuality that you are going to eliminate sexual
problems in the next generation of teenagers --

DR. LILLY: I was aware that I was exaggerating your --

DR. KOOP: -- any more than I think you can totally
eliminate smoking, no matter how hard you try. You can, however
make tremendous inroads in it, and that is what I was trying to
get across. I think we need research in many things that we
don’t know about. One is human behavior. A part of that is
already being addressed by the mental health division of ADAMHA.
Some things ought to be coming down the road in a couple of years
that will help us, but that is still a long time away. Whenever
you get into the problem of drug abuse, you run into tremendous
problems just in having people willing to consider alternatives.
There was a very brilliant editorial in the Post recently about
the free distribution of drugs. That gets rid of everything in
the way of the supplier and knocks the props out of immoral
governments in South America. However, I don’t think that you
are ever going to sell that idea to the American people.

Look at the difficulty in getting them just to discuss
the possibility of clean needles, let alone to not make it a
crime.

I would like to tell you a couple of anecdotes that I
think are worthwhile. The Scottish experience can teach us many
things. The Scottish Department of Health is under the UK, but
is rather independent. The Health Department decided to try a
clean needle experiment in three cities. All of the cities have
a pretty homogeneous cultural and ethnic composition and are
within one-hour driving distance of each other. The cities were
Dundee, Glasgow and Edinburgh; the plan was for addicts to
exchange their dirty paraphernalia for clean equipment.

Now, in Dundee, the program never got off the ground
because the physicians in that town said, "It is immoral to aid
and abet an illegal practice. So, we will not take part in it,"
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and it never started. In Glasgow, the drug addicts said, "It is
a great idea. We have heard you. We will do it, but we are not
going to be labeled as IV drug abusers in the public eye. So, we
will buy our own equipment in the pharmacy.™ You can do that in
Scotland. You cannot do it here. In Edinburgh they lined up in
queues in front of the dispensing office like they were getting
on a bus. They went in one door, and out the other with their
stuff, and listened to the message. The great difference between
that experience and ours is literacy and illiteracy.

In response to the questions of transferring that kind
of information to our country, I think it is hazardous. I am
very impressed with what was done in Amsterdam, but that is an
entirely different drug population than you find in Newark or New
York or the District of Columbia or in Miami. One has to be
extraordinarily careful in not stating a program until you have
tried it out in your own ethnic backyard to see how it works. It
must be pilot-tested, well-monitored and evaluated before you
say, "This is what we should do." One of my great concerns about
the New York experiment is where they find their volunteers to go
into the free needle program. I don’t think you should approach
a person waiting in line for Methadone treatment. That person
~ has already made the commitment to kick the habit, and is willing
to go into a program. To approach that person and say, "Hey, I
have got something neat for you, some clean needles. You c¢an go
back to what you did before, and you won’t get AIDS." I think
there is a certain immoral twist to that.

I don’t think that I am in a position, sir, to have the
knowledge to tackle some of those other things you mentioned
about taking this problem out of the criminal justice system. I
would say one thing in conclusion. I don’t think many people
realize the reason that the United Kingdom can go into a clean
needle program and can deal with things apparently much more
quickly and efficiently than we can is based upon two separate
concepts about drug abuse. The UK has always dealt with drug
abuse as a health problem that had to be dealt with by health
people. We have always dealt with drug abuse in the criminal
justice system, and we in health are Johnny come latelies to a
well-engrained system, and it is going to take a long time before
we are able to mesh our objectives and our goals.

DR. LILLY: May I just ask one very simple
straightforward question? If the possession of injection
equipment were simply to be legalized, do you think that
significant numbers of people who would otherwise not have taken
IV drugs would do so?

DR. KOOP: I rather doubt it, sir. I have talked at
great length with the Minister of Health of the Netherlands about
this. Their great concern was because they have so many
itinerant drug abusers in Amsterdam that if they made free
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needles available to everybody, a lot of people would take up the
habit. They found that was not the case. They did not do that.

DR. LILLY: I wasn’t thinking of free needles, but
simply making it legal to buy them in the drug store.

DR. KOOP: My answer is still good because if they
don’t do it with free needles, they won’t do it with the kind
they buy.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: Ms. Pullen.

MS. PULLEN: What do you think is the appropriate form
and message of AIDS education to first graders?

DR. KOOP: I think first graders are told answers to
their questions. Toddlers begin to ask questions about
themselves, and the questions are the same until they are 6.
There are only two: Where do I come from? Why do I look
different than my brother or sister? I think those can be
answered very frankly by parents without telling children more
than they want to kKnow.

I think that you start a first grader with an
understanding of his own body. They need to understand it as
something that is marvelously made, that it needs to be
respected, and that other people have bodies like that for which
they should have great respect. You can play games with kids at
that age. There is one that I think is worth mentioning. It is
a game played by youngsters in kindergarten. A teacher
designates five children to carry out the roles of a mommy, a
daddy, a baby, a doctor and a nurse. This game is played just
before dismissal with the idea that children will go home filled
with their subject and tell their parents. The parents can then
add their ethical, moral or religious perspectives.

The game that they play has to do with the birth of a
baby. Many kindergartens have a plastic tunnel through which
kids run and play. On the occasion of this game, it is called
the birth canal. Mommy and daddy put a baby in one end of the
birth canal, and the doctor and nurse take it out at the other
end. The doctor and the nurse give the baby a sex and a weight,
andthe mommy and the daddy give the baby a name. Everybody has a
good time, and they go home.

The point is, that when they get into the third grade
and begin to learn some anatomy, and are talking about parts of
the body in medical terms and they come to a new word, such as
vagina, it will not be something frightening or dirty or
threatening to them. It won’t be because they say, "Gee, I know
what that is, that is the birth canal. Remember, we walked
through it when we were in kindergarten."
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MS. PULLEN: What do you think is appropriate AIDS
education for third graders?

DR. KOOP: Third graders? Talking about parts of their
anatomy. However, no matter what you do about teaching anatomy
in the third grade and about reproduction in the fourth and fifth
grade, you always have to do it, as mentioned earlier, with an
emphasis on respect for one’s own body and other people’s bodies.
You talk about relationships between the sexes in the family
context and in the context of loving, kind, caring and
considerate relationships.

MS. PULLEN: What about the sixth grade?

DR. KOOP: By the time a child gets to the sixth grade,
the child is 12 years old. What you say is going to be o0ld hat
because the child has already heard it many, many places and has
read about it in every magazine article which glorifies sex. 1If
you aren’t sexy, you don’t make it in this country according to
advertising. In addition, the child has seem problems of human
relationships depicted on television. Studies done on this in
our own department, have revealed that a child in the sixth grade
gets to see sexual intercourse depicted or talked about or
mentioned by innuendo about 10 or 12 times in the course of a day
-- and that is in relatively modest places like Michigan.
Therefore, we are hiding our heads in the sand, if we don’t
realize that our children have been exposed to a kind of sex
education to which we wish they weren’t exposed. My concept is
that if you can counterbalance that with family input and
responsible understanding of their own sexuality, you might be
able to blunt some of those things you would rather not have them
know.

MS. PULLEN: Do you have any concept of AIDS education
in terms of a general more broad context of health and wellness
and personal responsibility or is it just about parts of the
body? '

DR. ROOP: No, everything that I talk about in
reference to health from a public health point of view is to
maintain wellness, and that is wellness not only of body but of
mind. Mental hygiene is tied into all the things which you are
talking about. It is not specifically just to tell people,
"Don’t do this, and you won’t catch that," but it is built into
an entire concept of wellness and how people can stay well
through personal responsibility. Being as old fashioned as I am,
I build that into family context that have to do with love,
consideration and marriage.

MS. PULLEN: What are the public health strategies
that should be used in the face of this epidemic, other than
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education in public schools and posters on subways and that sort
of education program?

DR. KOOP: We have the obligation, which I think we are
satisfying, of providing educators with everything that they have
to know about the problems of the epidemic of AIDS, or the
transmission of syphilis, or hepatitis, or anything else. We are
not educators. We don’t claim to be experts on that matter. We
do, however, have the obligation to provide pedagogues with the
information so they can use their skills to turn the information
into the proper type of teaching approaches for different ages.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: Dr. Lee.

DR. LEE: Dr. Koop, two broader questions. First of
all, much of our task has been trying to unravel bureaucratic
problems for the agencies, trying to speed things up in many
different ways. I won’t delineate all of the problems. You know
them. Why, given the percentage of the budget of the health
industry in the United States and the magnitude of your job.
isn’t the Surgeon General a member of the Cabinet? Why isn’t he
split off from Health and Human Services? Do we need that
additional bureaucracy on top of you?

DR. KOOP: Nobody every asked me that gquestion before.
The Surgeon General has never been the same in any two successive
4-year pericds for many, many years. I have been a more visible
Surgeon General than most people remember for specific reasons.
I will go backward to show you why. My predecessor, Dr. Julius
Richmond, had two impossible jobs at the same time, Surgeon
General and Assistant Secretary for Health. I don’t know how you
could do either one of those well, if you had the other over your
shoulder. There was no Surgeon General for 8 years preceding
Dr. Richmond. There was an Acting Surgeon General. This was
during a time when certain parts of government were trying to get
rid of the Corps whose uniforms I wear.

Before that time, the focus of the Surgeon General was
much narrower, and that is decided upon by whomever happens to be
the Secretary of Health. Nobody has had the freedom that I have
had since about 1966, and I have been in that position for a
number of reasons. First, it took a long time for me to be
confirmed. Therefore, by the time I was confirmed, it was
Novenber of the first year of this President’s Administration,
and people sort of forgot I was still waiting in the wings.
Plus, nobody told me what my job was. So I did what Secretary
Schweiker said to do. He said, "If you see any balls out there
that you want to pick up, do so and run with them," and I did.

Second, I am the kind of a person who is in a sense a
poor loser. If I undertake a problem, I try to wring it dry.
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Third, I happened to be standing on the right street
corner when AIDS came along. When the President asked me to do
an AIDS report to the American people, I became the spokesman
almost overnight.

That is far and above what most Surgeon Generals deo. I
am fond of saying that the Surgeon General, by law is mandated to
do only one thing, inform the public of those things they can do
to promote good health an tell them what they can do to prevent
disease. That is the only mandate I have from Congress, except
to be at certain places at certain times as the Surgeon General.

I think that it would be great to have a Surgeon
General who was freed from any kind of political duress who could
be, in a sense, an apolitical health officer who stuck to that
job of communication. I think it is a very important role.
People appreciate what I am doing because I have not politicized
the health issues of the country, and I have tried to do the job
with integrity.

I don’t see that a person in that type of position
should ever be on the Cabinet. There is already a member of the
Cabinet who is given the responsibility of health and human
services. If you want to talk some time about whether that job
should be divided in half with a Secretary for Health, and a
Secretary of Human Services, I have some opinions on that.

DR. LEE: That was my question, but I won’t press you
further. I will defer my second question in the interests of
time,.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: Dr. Koop, it is 10 minutes until 10.
We don’t want to impose on your time beyond the scheduled hour,
on the other hand, I think that from the Commissioners’ point of
view, we would like to continue with the questioning, certainly
get all the Commissioners in, if your time permits. So, could
you give us some idea of how much time you can spend with us?

DR. KOOP: If I don’t get in the car by guarter after
10, I am in trouble the rest of the day.

CHAIRMAN WATKINS: Okay, we will only go to 14 minutes
after 10 then, and I would like to shift all the way to the right
then with Mr. DeVos.

MR. DEVOS: I respect what you are saying and what you
are doing. I guess my concern in this whole problem, Dr. Koop,
is that we have vehicles for the schools, and we have vehicles
for reaching children, for their family involvement. Our whole
problem is with the other 10 percent. We don’t have families
that dropped out of schools at early ages, and at Ford Hospital
in Detroit, you know, they said, "You had better get them by the
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third grade or they won’t be around by the fifth grade anyway."
It was staggering disappointment to find that the schools just
aren’t reaching the ones who are the problem area, and I guess I
am looking for a methodology to reach those, and we are
struggling with it together. Your insights on all of that are
most helpful.

DR. KOOP: I struggle with those things, too, Mr.
Devos. I have said in reference to the household mailing, which
has gathered so much publicity and impetus, that the real people
we are trying to reach don’t have mailboxes.

MR. DEVOS: We just have to keep finding them, keep
looking, I guess. '

CHATRMAN WATKINS: Dr. Primm.

DR. PRIMM: Surgeon General Koop, you noted that the
CDC predicts that in 1991 5 percent of the diagnosed cases of
AIDS will be among heterosexuals, and I wonder if you could
comment on that in view of the fact that there is an 11 to 1
ratio when comparing white heterosexual cases with black
heterosexual cases. Aren’t you alarmed about that? Has the
Public Health Service done anything to focus on that issues?
and could you give me an estimate of the number of blacks and
Hispanics and unknowns that will be so affected in 19917

I have another question. It has been mentioned in the
media that you had suggested testing college students for the
presence of the antibody to the HIV. Would you comment on that
for the Commission?

DR. KOOP: Yes, sir. In reference to the
disproportionate number of AIDS patients in certain minorities, I
have been trying to address this as a spokesman for public
health for a year and a half by calling attention to the fact
that whereas blacks make up about 12 percent of our population,
they make up 24 percent of our AIDS patients. Hispanics or
Latinos make up 6 percent of our population but 14 percent of our
AIDS patients. you could break that down into other groups like
black and white homosexuals and the babies born to mothers who
are HIV positive. My point in doing this is to call for a
response from the black and Hispanic communities with whom I have
worked to the best of my ability. I traveled to Boston several
nights ago and spent time with some prostitutes and some former
IV drug abusers who are HIV positive. All were black or Latin.
We were trying to find ways that we could get the message out to
those who could prevent the spread of this disease by changes in
personal behavior.

In my days in Philadelphia as a pediatric surgeon when
I wanted to get a message across to the black community that
didn’t seem to be absorbed, I went to the clergymen, and they
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were marvelous. For something like immunization of children,
they said it, and it happened. They are a little reluctant to
get involved in the problems with AIDS. Everything that the
public does or thinks about AIDS is affected by three overlying
elements of this problem. One, in spite of all we know about it,
it is still very much of a mystery. Two, it has 100 percent
fatality. Those two things make people uneasy. Three, and most
importantly, people get AIDS by doing things that most people
don’t do and don’t approve of. Therefore, black clergymen
hesitate to get down to the eyeball-to-eyeball situation with IV
drug abusers and homosexuals. I think we have got to overcome
that. I think we need black doctors, Hispanic doctors,
entertainers, sports figures (especially those who are role
models for your people) to pick up this effort and do something
with it.

As far as my talk about testing at colleges, that has
been greatly misinterpreted and overblown. I started this
discussion back in the summer of 1987, when we were trying to get
a handle on the prevalence of HIV in certain groups of the
populace. We talk about heterosexual transmission. We talk
about sexual promiscuity in college people. One of the things
that we thought it would be a great thing to do is have an AIDS
awareness day on an urban campus of a major university, say 30 to
35 thousand students, and have so much hype that everybody joined
in. In a sense those who didn’t want to be tested would be
embarrassed into being tested, totally anonymous. It has nothing
to do with the health of individuals but to help us answer
guestions that you ask, such as what is the prevalence of HIV in
college people. It was a purely public health gimmick to get an
answer.

DR. PRIMM: My question was more on the prediction of
the number of black heterosexuals in 1991. If you predict that 5
percent of the total number of cases in 1991 are going to be
heterosexual cases, I would think then if there is an 11 to 1
ratio between blacks and whites now, that in 1991, that number is
going to be even more enormous.

DR. KOOP: I would agree with that.

DR. PRIMM: Unless we and the Public Health Service, me
in my position here on the Commission, me in my position
privately in New York and everywhere I go to speak, if we don’t
speak out about that, we will not be prepared. I suggested that
to you so as to try to convey a message that we need to prepare
whatever health delivery system there is for this onslaught of
cases and to, like you say, involve the clergy, sports figures,
celebrities or whomever else. I just need that being said from
your perch.
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